























































































































BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
oooon
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Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 62,
was appointed as independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 26 June 2015. Mr. Tsang is a holder of a Bachelor
Degree in Commerce from Curtin University, Australia and a
Master Degree in Business Accounting from Monash University,
Australia. Mr. Tsang is also a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of CPA
Australia. Mr. Tsang had held senior positions in a number of
Hong Kong listed companies.
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Mr. Tsang has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with no specific term for appointment. In accordance
with the articles of association of the Company, he is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The
remuneration of Mr. Tsang is HK$200,000 per annum which
is determined by the Board with reference to his respective
qualifications and experiences, his respective duties and
responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market situation.

OO0Oo0ooodg

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tsang does not hold any other 000000000 O0O0O0O0OCOOOO
positions with the Company or its subsidiaries, norhasheheld OOO0OOO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OOO0OOOOOOOO
any directorships in other listed public companies. Mr. Tsang 0000000000 0O0O0O0OOOO
does not have any relationships with other directors, senior 0000000000 O0OD0OOOOCOOO
management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the OODOOO

Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
oooon

The Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”) is pleased
to submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of China Financial Leasing Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in short to medium term
capital appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of
investments in listed securities in Hong Kong. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and indication of likely future development
in the Group’s business, can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 14 of this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 56.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$1,700,000.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
oooon

TOTAL NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES Ooooddn

Details of the movements in the total number of issued shares 00000000000 OO0OCOOODO
of the Company during the year are set out in note 20tothe OO0 0000 OO 0O 200

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME o000

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the OO0O0O0O0O0O0O0OO0OOCOOOOOOOO
“SO Scheme”) on 12 January 2012. The purpose of the SO 00000000 O0O0O0DOOMOOOO
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to eligible O OOOOOOO0OOOOOO0OOOOOO
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to 00000 0000000000000
the Group. Eligible participants of the SO Scheme include, OO0 OO0O00OOOOO0O0OOOOOO
without limitation, any persons who are employees, officers, 0000000000000 0O00O00OO
agents, consultants or representatives of the Group. The SO 00000000 0OOOO0O0OOOOOO

Scheme became unconditional upon The Stock Exchange of 0000000000000 O0OCODOO
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting on 13 000000000000 OO0COOOO
January 2012 the approval of the listing of and the permission 000000000000 O0O0O0OOO
to deal in the shares falling to be issued pursuant to the OO0OO0OO0OO0O0O0O0O0O0O00O0O0O0O0OO
exercise of any options to be granted under the SO Scheme OO0OO0OO0O0O0O0OO0OOCOOO0ODOO
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall remain in

force for 10 years from the adoption date.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options OO0 O0O0OO0OO0O0O0O00O0O0O0OOOOO
to each eligible participant in the SO Scheme and the other OO OO0OO0OO00COO0OOOOO
scheme (if any) in any 12-month’s period shall not exceed 1% 0000000000000 OO0O00OO
of the total number of issued shares of the Company forthe O OO0O0OO0OO0OCOOO0O0ODOOOO
time being. Any further grant of share options to any eligible 1%000000000000O0O00O00O
participant in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ O O0OO0O0OO0O0O00O0O0C0OOO0OOOO
approval in a general meeting. The total number of shares 000000000 O0O0OOOOOOO
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to OO0 O O0O00O0OO0O0O0OOO0O0OOO
be granted under the SO Scheme and the other schemes (f OOOO0OO0O0OO0OOOO0O00O0O0O0ODOO
any) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the OO0 0000000000000 00OO

Company in issue (the “10% Limit") as at 12 January 2012, OO0 O0O0O0O0O0O0O0O0O0O0O0OOOOO
being the date of passing the resolution by the shareholders O OO0O0OOCOO0O0OOCODOCOODOO10%
at the extraordinary general meeting approving and adopting 00 10%0 0000000000000
the SO Scheme. The Company may seek approval of its OO OO0OOO000O0CODOOO0DOOOO
shareholders in a general meeting to refresh the 10% Limitat O OO0OOO0O0O0OOD10%0 00O

any time in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
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The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the SO Scheme and other schemes
(if any) shall not exceed 30% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time. The making of an
offer to any Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, or any of their respective associates must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Directors who or
whose associate is a proposed grantee of the share options).

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, in excess of
0.1% of the total number of issued shares of the Company at
any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the offer) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month’s period, are subject to
the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

Any offer may be accepted by an eligible participant in respect
of less than the number of shares which are offered provided
that such number is clearly stated in the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by such eligible
participants and received by the Company together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1 (which shall not
be later than 21 days from the offer date). The exercise price
of the share options is determinable by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date; (ii) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (ii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.
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On 12 July 2016, a total of 34,300,000 share options
(the “Options”) were granted to eligible participants of the
Company. The exercise price of the Options was HK$0.4 each.
The exercise period of the Options was from 12 July 2016
to 11 July 2019. No vesting period or vesting condition was
imposed on the abovementioned Options. No Options were
exercised or lapsed during the year. For details, please refer to
the note 23 to the consolidated financial statement under the
section headed “Share-based Payments”

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 130 of
the annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, approximately HK$147,041,000 in the share premium
account and approximately HK$19,444,000 in the reserve
arising from capital reduction of the Company completed on
10 December 2012, is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

Annual Report 2016
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. John Yen Jong Ling?
Mr. Jim Ka Shun?

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gan Wei Ping

Mr. Yip Ming

Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin®

Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan?®

Mr. Lau Siu Hang

Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward

Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin?®

1. Mr. Jim Ka Shun was appointed on 1 January 2016.
2. Mr. John Yen Jong Ling resigned on 31 January 2016.
3. Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin, Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan and Mr. Yun Kwok Wing

Edwin retired on 25 May 2016.

Pursuant to Article 88(1) of the Articles, Mr. Gan Wei Ping and
Mr. Yip Ming will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offered
themselves for re-election at the 2017 Annual General Meeting
(“2017 AGM”).

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
oooooon

RSM

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP LIMITED 0000000 oooooooooao
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) gdooooDoooooouoooo
OPINION 0ad

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of O OOO0O000O00O056012900 000
China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”)andits 0000000000000 000000
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 129, which 000000000000 O0O0OOO0OOOO
comprise the consolidated statement of financial positonasat 00O O0O0O00O0O00O0O0O0OO0OO
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of proftor OO0 O0O0OO0O0OO0OOOOOO0OOOOO0O
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement OO0 00000000000 OOOOO
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cashflows O 0000000000000 O0O0OO
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial O O0OO0OO0O0 0000000000
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a O 00000000 O0O0OOCOOO0OO
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of OO0 OO OO000O0OCOO0O0OCQCOOOO
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated OO 0000000000 O0OOCOO0OO
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows forthe OODOD OO O0OOO0OO0O0 OO0OO0O0OO
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial 000000000000 O0O0O0O0OO
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong 0000000000 O0O0COO0OOOO
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and 0000000000000 O0O0O0OOO
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure OO0 00000

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION Oo0o

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong 00000000 OCOCOOOOOOOO
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our OO0OO000O0O0O0O0O00O00O0O0OOO0OOO
responsibilities under those standards are further described in D OO0 00000000000 OOOO
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 000000000000 O00O00OO
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent O O0000OO0O00000COO0O0O0ODOO
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics O 000000000 O0MOOOOO O
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have O 00000O000O000O0000O0OO0O
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance withthe OO0 0000000000 OOOOOO

Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainedis O0O0O0O0OO0O0O0OO0OOOOO0OO0OO0OOO
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. oo
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

oogoogn

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to
communicate in our report.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information comprises all the information in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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China Financial Leasing Group Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Ooogoogn

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Annual Report 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

oogoogn

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Ooogoogn

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

oogoogn

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
oooooboogog

For the year ended 31 December 2016
00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

2016 2015
ooooo ooooo
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
0d ogdd ood
Revenue 0o 8 1 1
Other income — Sundry income oooooooon 11 -
Net loss on financial assets atfair 0O 00000 0OO0O0O
value through profit or loss oooooogo (15,253) (17,216)
(15,241) (17,215)
Administrative expenses oooad (22,415) (16,933)
Loss before tax ooooo (37,656) (34,148)
Income tax expense ooooo 9 = -
Loss for the year oooad 10 (37,656) (34,148)
Other comprehensive income, 000000000 0OO0O
net of tax:
ltem that may be reclassified to oooooooooooo
profit or loss:
Fair value changes of available-for- 0 OO0 000000
sale financial assets ooooo (633) -
Total comprehensive income oooooooooo
for the year attributable to oooooo
owners of the Company (38,289) (34,148)
Loss per share oood 14
Basic (cents per share) oooooooo (6.04) (5.97)
Diluted (cents per share) oo0oooooo (6.04) (5.97)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

oogood

At 31 December 2016
Joooooooooooo

2016 2015
oooono oooon
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
0o ooo ooo
Non-current assets ogoood
Property, plant and equipment gooooogon 15 3,054 1,037
Available-for-sale financial assets 0O OO0 000O0OO 17 518 -
3,572 1,037
Current assets oooo
Financial assets at fair value O0o0ooooooooo
through profit or loss oood 18 66,244 33,725
Deposits and prepayments oooooono 19 345 198
Bank and cash balances ooooooad 751 6,441
67,340 40,364
Current liabilities ENERERE
Accruals Oooono 387 1,415
Net current assets oooooao 66,953 38,949
NET ASSETS ooad 70,525 39,986
Capital and reserves ooooo
Equity attributable to owners oo0oooooooad
of the Company
Share capital 0ad 20 14,839 11,439
Reserves oo 22 55,686 28,547
TOTAL EQUITY oo 70,525 39,986

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Jim Ka Shun
ooo

Executive Director
oooo

Yip Ming
o0

gogbobooooooooboboodoad

gobooboobobog

Independent Non-executive Director
IENENENE ] T

ooooooo

ooOoooooooooo




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
oooobd

For the year ended 31 December 2016
00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

Capital Investment
Share reduction ~ Share option revaluation  Accumulated
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Total equity
00 0000 0oOoooo 0oooo oOooooo 0ooo 0oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
0oo ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo

(note 20)  (note 22(b)())  (note 22(b)(i))  (note 22(b)ii))  (note 22(b)(v))
00020 000220)()0 COD22b)i0 000220 000220

At 1 January 2015 goooooooono 11,439 88,446 19,444 - - (45,195) 74134

Total comprehensive incomeand 00000000000

changes in equity for the year oo - - - - - (34,148) (34,148)
At 31 December 2015 and poooooooooooo
1 January 2016 0ooooooooo 11439 88,446 19,444 - - (79,343) 39,986
Total comprehensive income gooooooo
for the year - - - - (633) (37,656) (38,289)
Issue of shares on placements oooooono
(note 20(a)) 00020@)0 3,400 60,400 - - - - 63,800
Share issue expenses gooooo - (1,805) - - - - (1,805)
Share-hased payments (note 23) 000000
000230 - - - 6,833 - - 6,833
Changes of equity for the year gooooo 3,400 58,595 - 6,833 (633) (37,656) 30,539
At 31 December 2016 oooooo
ooooooo 14,839 147,041 19,444 6,833 (633) (116,999) 70,525
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

oogood

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

2016 2015
ooooo ooooo
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
0d oodd ood
CASH FLOWS FROM oo0oooooo
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax ooooo (37,656) (34,148)
Adjustments for: Oooooooooa
Depreciation 0oad 15 898 424
Loss on disposal of property, oo0ooooon
plant and equipment oooo - 219
Equity-settled share-based oooooooood
payments 23 6,833 -
Net loss on financial assets atfair 0O 000000 OOO
value through profit or loss ooooooono 15,253 17,216
Operating loss before working oo0ooooobooono
capital changes (14,672) (16,289)
Purchases of financial assets at 0oooooooogd
fair value through profit or loss goooood (101,199) (83,926)
Proceeds from disposals of dooooooood
financial assets at fair value oooooooo
through profit or loss ooood 53,427 100,467
(Increase)/decrease in deposits ooooooDaod
and prepayments oo0ooooo (247) 249
(Decrease)/increase in accruals odooooooooon (1,028) 1,091
Net cash (used in)/generated oo0oooooooon
from operating activities oood (63,619) 1,592
CASH FLOWS FROM oo0oooooo
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries oo0oooo 24 (2,900) (425)
Purchases of property, plantand 000 00000OO0O
equipment 15 (15) (857)
Proceeds from disposal of oo0ooooono
property, plant and equipment ooooon - 70
Purchase of available-for-sale oo0o0o0ooooooao
financial assets (1,151) -
Net cash used in investing ooogoooboooo
activities (4,066) (1,212)
ooooooo ooooooooooon



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ooogood

For the year ended 31 December 2016
00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

2016 2015
ooooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
0oo oo
CASH FLOWS FROM oo0oooooo
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds fromissue of shareson O 00000000 DO0ODO
placements 63,800 -
Share issue expenses paid oooooooo (1,805) -
Net cash generated from oo0oo0ooooooa
financing activities 61,995 -
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE ooooooooooo
IN CASH AND CASH ooooooo
EQUIVALENTS (5,690) 380
CASH AND CASH ooooooooo
EQUIVALENTS oo0oooo
AT 1 JANUARY 6,441 6,061
CASH AND CASH oooooooooogod
EQUIVALENTS ogooooo
AT 31 DECEMBER 751 6,441
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND ooooooooooo
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances gooooono 751 6,441

m China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business
is Room 2202, 22nd Floor, 118 Connaught Road West,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in short to
medium term capital appreciation by investing in a
diversified portfolio of investments in listed and unlisted
securities in Hong Kong and overseas on a general
perspective. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

oboogoboooobd
oobgdod

(b) ObOoOooooboboooDod
ooooOoOO0OO000o0ooon

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning

on or after
oooooo
ooooo
oooo

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017

goooogbor7oboboobobbgoooo

gbooogbgoood

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of deferred tax 1 January 2017

assets for unrealised losses

goboobolzz0obogboooobooooboboobooboo oDoboobooo

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Oo00o0ooooooenoonog

1 January 2018
ooooooooo

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment: Classification and 1 January 2018

measurement of share-based payment transactions
O00D00000do2000oooooooon
Oo0oDoDoO0o0oooooooo

HKFRS 16 Leases
Oo00oooooo0ooglegond

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the new
standards which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in
due course.

ooooooo

ooboooooon

1 January 2019
oo0ooooooo

obooobooboooano
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooogoogn

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000O0OooooOooo

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)  New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The standard introduces a new approach to the
classification of financial assets which is based on
cash flow characteristics and the business model
in which the asset is held. A debt instrument that
is held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows and
that has contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding is measured at amortised cost. A debt
instrument that is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting the
contractual cash flows and selling the instruments
and that has contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other debt instruments
are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Equity instruments are generally measured at
fair value through profit or loss. However, an
entity may make an irrevocable election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

m China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities are carried
forward largely unchanged from HKAS 39 except
that when the fair value option is applied changes
in fair value attributable to changes in own credit
risk are recognised in other comprehensive
income unless this creates an accounting
mismatch.

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss
impairment model to replace the incurred-loss
impairment model in HKAS 39. It is no longer
necessary for a credit event or impairment
trigger to have occurred before impairment
losses are recognised. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, an entity will
generally recognise 12-month expected credit
losses. If there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, an entity
will recognise lifetime expected credit losses.
The standard includes a simplified approach for
trade receivables to always recognise the lifetime
expected credit losses.

The de-recognition requirements in HKAS 39 are
carried forward largely unchanged.

ooooooo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooogoogn

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000O0OooooOooo

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)  New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 substantially overhauls the hedge
accounting requirements in HKAS 39 to align
hedge accounting more closely with risk
management and establish a more principle based
approach.

The Group’s financial assets that are currently
classified as available-for-sale include unlisted
equity securities. The Group expects to irrevocably
designate these equity securities as fair value
through other comprehensive income. This will
give rise to a change in accounting policy. The
unlisted equity securities are currently measured
at fair value with fair value changes recognised
in other comprehensive income until disposal or
impairment at which point the fair value gains or
losses are recycled to profit or loss. Under HKFRS
9 recycling of the fair value gains and losses
is not permitted. HKFRS 9 requires fair value
measurement with fair value changes recognised
in other comprehensive income without recycling.

The new expected credit loss impairment model
in HKFRS 9 may result in the earlier recognition of
impairment losses on the Group’s financial assets.
The Group is unable to quantity the impact until a
more detailed assessment is completed.

m China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016

3. bUooobodgobooon
oobgdod

(b)

gooooobbboogg
ooooOoOO0OO000o0ooon
oooooooooonnn
ooooo
ooooooboooeuonon
ooOooooooboosonnd
gooobobooboboboooo
ooooOoOOoO0O0oooooo
gbooboobooobod

obOoobOoobOoooao
goooooboboooo
goobooooobooboooo
obOoobOoobOoooao
gooobooboboooobooog
gooobobooboboboooo
ooooOoOOoO0O0o0oooood
goooooboboooo
goboobobobobog
obOoobOoobOoooao
gooboodoooboboooa
goiooonoooooog
ooooOooooOooo0ooo
ooubuonooooooon
goooobobbboooo
ooooooo

gooooogoboooennod
obOoobOoobOoooao
goooooboboooo
gooooboboboboogo
obOoobOoobOoooao
oood



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a
single accounting model for lessees. For lessees
the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases
(with optional exemptions for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries
forward the accounting requirements for lessors
in HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will
therefore continue to classify leases as operating
or financing leases.

The Group’s office property leases are currently
classified as operating leases and the lease
payments (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under
HKFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise
and measure a liability at the present value of the
future minimum lease payments and recognise
a corresponding right-of-use asset for these
leases. The interest expense on the lease liability
and depreciation on the right-of-use asset will
be recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s
assets and liabilities will increase and the timing
of expense recognition will also be impacted as a
result.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000O0OooooOooo

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. 000000000000

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING gouoodod

STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)  New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (py ODOOOODOODOODOODOO
effective (Continued) O0o0o0ooooooDooo
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) oooooooooiennn

oon

As disclosed in note 26, the Group’s future 0000260000000
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable oooooooogoooodg
operating leases for its office premises amounted Oooooooooooo
to HK$731,000 as at 31 December 2016. The Oooooooooooo
Group will need to perform a more detailed 00730000 000000
assessment in order to determine the new assets 000000000Ooooo
and liabilities arising from these operating leases O0O0O0Ooooo0Ooilen
commitments after taking into account the Oooooooogoooog
transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and the Oo0oooDooooooog
effects of discounting. Oo0oooooooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. 0OO0OO0ODOOO

These consolidated financial statements have been goooboooooooogooog
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless oo0ooooooooooooo
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below oooooboooooooooo
(e.g. certain financial instruments that are measured at gooooom

fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with goooboooooooogooog
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting ooooooooooooooo
estimates. It also requires management to exercise ooooooooooooooo
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s gooooooobogoooooo
accounting policies. The areas where assumptions and oo0ooooooooooooon
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial ooooos000

statements are disclosed in note 5.
The significant accounting policies applied in the oooooOoooooooooo

preparation of these consolidated financial statements oooooooooo
are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities,
i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’'s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000O0OooooOooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. UO0OO0OO0OO0OD0OOODO
(Continued)

(b)  Foreign currency translation (by OCOGQOOO
0] Functional and presentation currency (i) oooooon
Items included in the financial statements of oooDoooooo

each of the Group’s entities are measured O0oDo0oooogood
using the currency of the primary economic 00o0oo0oD0oDoo0oo
environment in which the entity operates Oooooooood
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated Oooooooooao
financial statements are presented in Hong oooooooooo
0
U

Kong dollars, which is the Company’s oooooooo

functional and presentation currency. ood

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s (i) ooooooooon
financial statements oooo
Transactions in foreign currencies are 00o0oo0oD0oDoo0oo
translated into the functional currency Ooooooooo
on initial recognition using the exchange ooooooodgod
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. ooooooooo
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign Ooooooooo
currencies are translated at the exchange oooooooooo
rates at the end of each reporting period. oopooooooo
Gains and losses resulting from this oooooo
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured at oooooooogd
fair value in foreign currencies are translated oo0oooooood
using the exchange rates at the dates when oooDoooooo
the fair values are determined. oooooog
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary oooDoDDoO0OO0O00
item is recognised in other comprehensive oooooooogd
income, any exchange component of oooooooooo
that gain or loss is recognised in other Ooooooooo
comprehensive income. When a gain or ocoooDoooooo
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised 00o0oo0oD0oDoo0oo
in profit or loss, any exchange component oooooooooo
of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or oooooooogd
loss. oog
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b)  Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates for the
period (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000O0OooooOooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. UO0OO0OO0OO0OD0OOODO
(Continued)

(b)  Foreign currency translation (Continued) (b) Ooooooo

(i) Translation on consolidation (Continued) )  OO0O0O00ooon
On consolidation, exchange differences oooooooood
arising from the translation of monetary ocoooooooo
items that form part of the net investment oopooooooo
in foreign entities are recognised in other oooooooood
comprehensive income and accumulated oooooooogd
in the foreign currency translation reserve. 00o0oo0oD0oDoo0oo
When a foreign operation is sold, such oooooooood
exchange differences are reclassified to oooooooogd
consolidated profit or loss as part of the 00o0oo0oD0oDoo0oo
gain or loss on disposal. ooooooo

(c) Property, plant and equipment (c) ODOOOOOOO

Property, plant and equipment held for use in Oooooooooooog

the production or supply of goods or services, ooooOoOOoOooooood

or for administrative purposes, are stated in the OOooooooooooo

consolidated statement of financial position at oooooooooooo

cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation ooooooooom

and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s O0ooooDooooao

carrying amount or recognised as a separate ooooooooooogo

asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable O@ooOooooooood

that future economic benefits associated with the O000ooooooooo

item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item oooooooooooo

can be measured reliably. All other repairs and OOooooooooooo

maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during Opooooooooooo

the period in which they are incurred. oooooooooooo

gg

China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
00o0oooOooooooooooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful
lives are as follows:

Motor vehicles
Furniture and office equipment

4 years
2 — 4 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000O0OooooOooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(€)

China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale
of a financial asset is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the financial assets
within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except
in the case of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

0] Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are either financial assets classified
as held for trading or designated as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition. These financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these financial assets are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000O0OooooOooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. UO0OO0OO0OO0OD0OOODO
(Continued)

U] Financial assets (Continued) ) ooooooo
(i) Loans and receivables (i) ooooooon
Loans and receivables are non-derivative oooDoooooo
financial assets with fixed or determinable oooooooogd
payments that are not quoted in an active oo0ooooooood
market. These assets are carried at oooDoooooo
amortised cost using the effective interest oooooooood
method (except for short-term receivables ooooooooo
where interest is immaterial) minus any ocoooooooono
reduction for impairment or uncollectibility. oooooooogo
Typically other receivables, bank and cash ooooooooo
balances are classified in this category. oooooooood

gboogaoooano
gooooooooon
oooo

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets i) OoOooooooo
Available-for-sale financial assets are non- oooDoooooo
derivative financial assets that are not oooooooogd
classified as loans and receivables or ooooooooo
financial assets at fair value through profit or Ooooooooo
loss. Available-for-sale financial assets are ooooooooog
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains ooooooooo
or losses arising from changes in fair value oooooooood
of these investments are recognised in other oooooooogd
comprehensive income and accumulated ooooooooo
in the investment revaluation reserve, until oooDoooooo
the investments are disposed of or there is oooooooogd
objective evidence that the investments are ooooooooo
impaired, at which time the cumulative gains Ooooooooo
or losses previously recognised in other O O
comprehensive income are reclassified from 0 O
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated 0 O
using the effective interest method and O O
dividends on available-for-sale equity 0
investments are recognised in profit or loss. 0

gbobooobooond
gooboon
goooooao
goooboboond
gbobobooboao
goooooogod
goooooagooo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

Other receivables

Other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

If collection of other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000O0OooooOooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. OO0OO0OO0OO0O00O0OO
(Continued)

() Other payables ()] oooooo
Other payables are recognised initially at their fair O000ooooooooo
value and subsequently measured at amortised Ooooooooooooo
cost using the effective interest method unless the oo0ooOoOOoooooood
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which 0000000 o0oooo
case they are stated at cost. ood
(k)  Equity instruments (ky OOoOOO
Equity instruments issued by the Company are Oooooooooooo
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct Oo0OooboOOoobooood
issue costs. ooooo
)] Revenue recognition m oooo
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the O00Dooooooooao
consideration received or receivable and is O0ooooooooooo
recognised when it is probable that the economic Oo0OooboOOoobooood
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of 0000oooo
revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion OOooooooooooo
basis using the effective interest method. Oooooooo
(m) Employee benefits (m) 0DO0OO0OO
0] Employee leave entitlements (1) oooooo
Employee entitlements to annual leave and oooooooogd
long service leave are recognised when they 00o0oo0oD0oDoo0oo
accrue to employees. A provision is made oooooooooo
for the estimated liability for annual leave oooooooogd
and long service leave as a result of services ooooooooo
rendered by employees up to the end of the ooooooooo
reporting period. oooooogood
Employee entitlements to sick leave and ooooooooo
maternity leave are not recognised until the oooooooogd

time of leave. ogd
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Pension obligations
The Group operates a mandatory provident
fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are
calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages
subject to a monthly maximum amount of
HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

(iir) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at
the earlier of the dates when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors, employees and
consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors
and employees are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date
of grant. The fair value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non-market based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000O0OooooOooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(0)

m China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Share-based payments (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payments to
consultants are measured at the fair value of
the services rendered or, if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured, at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an
expense.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

ooooooo

4.

gobogoood

(0)

ooOoooooooooo

gabogo
gooooobobbboo0oo
obOoobooboooao
gooboodoobooodd
gooooobobbboo0oo
obOoobooboooao
uood

obOoobooboooao
gogoboboboouooodda
gooooobobbboo0oo
obOoobooboooao
ubooboobod

obOoobooboooao
gooooobboogd
gboboooooooboooo
ooooObOO0o0o0oooaoo
gogoboboboouooodda
gooooobobbboo0oo
ooooObOO0o0o0oooooo
gooooobboogd
gbooboobooobod

gooooobobbboo0oo
obOoobooboooao
gooooobboogd
gbooooooo

oboobooboooao
gooooobboood
gooooboooooooo
gooooooboooooo
(081 5 5 g ] ] 1 = ]
[ . | 8 =2 ) T S ]
OLEEESERENETC MEFENENE
gud



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000O0OooooOooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. DOOO0OO0OO0OO
(Continued)

(p) Impairment of non-financial assets (p) CDOGCQOOOO
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are O00Dooooooooao
reviewed at each reporting date for indications oooooooooooo
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, ooooooooooooo
it is written down as an expense through the Oooooooooooo
consolidated statement of profit or loss and oooooooooooo
other comprehensive income to its estimated Ooooooooooooo
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount O0ooooooooooo
is determined for an individual asset, unless the OO0oooooooooo
asset does not generate cash inflows that are O0o0oooooooooo
largely independent of those from other assets or O00Dooooooooao
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable O0ooooooooooog
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit Oo0oooooooooo
to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount O000ooooooooo
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less Ooooooood
costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
cash-generating unit.
Value in use is the present value of the estimated OO0oooooooooo
future cash flows of the asset/cash-generating O000ooooooooo
unit. Present values are computed using pre-tax ooooooooooooo
discount rates that reflect the time value of money Oooooooooooo
and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating O00ooooooooooo
unit whose impairment is being measured. oooooo
Impairment losses for cash-generating units are O000ooooooooo
allocated pro rata amongst the assets of the oooooooooooo
cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases in O0o0o0ooooooooo
the recoverable amount caused by changes in O000ooooooooo
estimates are credited to profit or loss to the Ooooooooo

extent that they reverse the impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether its financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are
impaired, based on objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition, the estimated future cash
flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the investment below its cost is considered also to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all financial assets, the carrying amount is
directly reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if the amount of the impairment loss decreases
in a subsequent period and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed directly
through profit or loss. However, the reversal must
not result in a carrying amount that exceeds
what the amortised cost of the financial asset
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000O0OooooOooo

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

m China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2016 was approximately HK$3,054,000
(2015: HK$1,037,000).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(@)

m China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk and return profiles. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity securities
quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2015: 10%)
higher/lower, loss after tax for the year ended
31 December 2016 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$6,624,000 (2015:
HK$3,373,000). This is mainly due to the changes
in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is
limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

The credit risk on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is limited because the
counterparty is a well-established securities broker
firm in Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
00o0oooOooooooooooo

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

()

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
The Group’s financial liabilities are repayable on
demand or within one year.

Based on the assessment of the directors,
despite the continuous operating loss incurred
by the Group over the years, the liquidity risk
encountered by the Group is minimal considered
that the Group will have sufficient cash resources
to satisfy its future working capital after taking
into account the ability of the Group to conduct
fund raising activities and the ability to realise the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’s operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. 0OO0O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO
(Continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 (e) ObOO0oooOoooboooood
December 2016 gogooooao
2016 2015
ooooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
ogdd ood
Financial assets: ooooo
Financial assets at fair value opoooooon
through profit or loss: oooooodo
Held for trading ooood 66,244 33,725
Loans and receivables ogoooood
(including cash and oooood
cash equivalents) ooooooaod 896 6,596
Available-for-sale financial gooooooo
assets 518 -
Financial liabilities: ogoood
Financial liabilities ooooooon
at amortised cost oogono 387 1,415
(f) Fair values () ood
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial oooooooooooo
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in oooooooooooo
the consolidated statement of financial position ooooooooooooo
approximate their respective fair values. oo
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
00o0oooOooooooooooo

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7.

(Continued)

gooooogo

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at (@ OO0OO0DO0OODDOODOODODOO
goooooood

31 December 2016:

Fair value measurements using: Total
000D0O0000000DDo 0o
Description 00 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
oooo oooo gooo 0O0O0oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oo ooo agoo agono
Recurring fair value ooooooooag
measurements:
Financial assets oooao
Financial assets at farvalue 00000000
through profit or loss ooooooo
Listed securities oooo 66,244 - - 66,244
Available-for-sale financial 00000000
assets
Unlisted equity securities ooooooo - - 518 518
Total 00 66,244 - 518 66,762
Fair value measurements using: Total
000D0O0000000DDo 0o
Description 00 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
oooo oooo gooo 0O0O0oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oo ooo agoo agono
Recurring fair value ooooooooag
measurements:
Financial assets oooao
Financial assets at farvalue 00000000
through profit or loss ooooooo
Listed securities oood 33,725 - - 33,725
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
00o0oooOooooooooooo

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. 0OU0OO0OOOOO
(Continued)
(b)  Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value () ODDODODOODDOODOODODOO
based on level 3: ooo

Available-for-sale

financial
assets-
unlisted equity
Description od securities
ooon
oo0ooo
ooooooo
HK$’000
ood
At 1 January 2016 oooooooood -
Total gains or losses recognised in opooooooooo
other comprehensive income ooooooad (633)
Purchase oo 1,151
At 31 December 2016 ooooooooooooo 518
The total gains or losses recognised in other oooooooooood
comprehensive income are presented in fair value oooooooooood
changes of available-for-sale financial assets in the oooooooooooon
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ooooooooood
comprehensive income. oo

ooooooo ooOoooooooooo
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00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(©)

China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Disclosure of valuation process used by
the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements at 31
December 2016:

The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes,
including level 3 fair value measurements. The
chief financial officer reports directly to the Board
of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the chief financial officer and the
Board of Directors at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts
with the recognised professional qualifications and
recent experience to perform the valuations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
00o0oooOooooooooooo

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. 0O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO
(Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by (c) Oo0OoobOOoobooood
the Group and valuation techniques and 000ooooooooog
inputs used in fair value measurements at 31 ooooooooooood
December 2016: (Continued) gooooomoo
Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value oooooooooooo
measurements are mainly as below: oooooooooood

goog
Effect on Fair value
fair value as at
Valuation for increase 31 December
Description technique Unobservable inputs Value of inputs 2016
gopoooo
ooooo ooo
goooo gooo
00 gooo oopooooo o0 oO0 oooo
Private equity investments  Discounted Weighted average cost ~ 16.53% Decrease HK$518,000
classified as available-for- cash flow of capital
sale financial assets gopoooo oopDooo0odo 00 518,0000 O
000000000000
gooooo Long-term revenue 3% Increase
growth rate
ooooooo 00
Long-term pre-tax 61.71% Increase
operating margin
gogoooooao g
Discount for lack of 35% Decrease
marketability
oopooooo 00

ooooooo ooOoooooooooo
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000000O000O0OooooOooo

8.

m China Financial Leasing Group Limited

REVENUE 00
Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: oooooooooo
2016 2015
gooon googon
HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo
Interest income goood 1 1

The results arising from the fair value change of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are shown
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income under the line of
“Net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss”. The gross proceeds from trading of securities
for the year amounted to approximately HK$53,427,000
(2015: HK$100,467,000).

The Group has identified its operating segments and
prepared segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the Group’s
executive directors for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and
review of these components’ performance.

For both years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016,
the Group has identified only one segment and the sole
business of this segment is investment in listed and
unlisted securities. No separate analysis of segment
information by business segment is presented.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
its non-current assets by geographical areas are not
presented as the geographical segments other than
Hong Kong are less than 10% of the aggregate amount
of all segments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdictions of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands during the year (2015: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements since the Group
has no assessable profit for the year (2015: Nil).

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and
the product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

oodadad
00000000000 O0000
ooooOoOoO0OOOOOOOOO
000000000

ooooooboooooboooo
goooboboomoooobod
gooboboooboobgoobg

gbobobobooobobooobon
goboobobooboobog

2016 2015
ooooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
0oo oo
Loss before tax ooooo (37,656) (34,148)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits 000000 0dni1e.5%
Tax rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 000000016.5%0
ooooo (6,213) (5,634)
Tax effect of expenses that are oooooooooon
not deductible 1,935 716
Tax effect of other temporary oooooooooood
differences not recognised oooad (227) 2,249
Tax effect of tax losses not oooooooooooo
recognised 4,395 2,669

Income tax expense gooon

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$168,849,000 (2015:
HK$138,641,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

ooooooo
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 100 OO
The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging the 00000000 ooooooo
following: ooo
2016 2015
ooooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
oo oo
Auditor’s remuneration oooon 310 310
Depreciation oo 898 424
Loss on disposal of property, oooDooobooooon
plant and equipment - 219
Other equity-settled share-based oooooooooood
payments 1,706 -
Operating lease charges for oooooooooon
land and buildings 502 873
11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 11, 000ooo
2016 2015
ooooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
ogdd ood
Employee benefits expense oooooao
(excluding directors’ emoluments): OO0 0000 0O
Salaries, bonuses and allowances oooooooo 5,199 4,584
Equity-settled share-based ooooooooon
payments 3,990 -
Retirement benefit scheme goooooog
contributions 153 127
9,342 4,711
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11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(Continued)

(@)

Pensions — defined contribution plans
Contributions totalling approximately HK$32,000
(2015: HK$27,000) were payable to the fund at
the end of the reporting period.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group
during the year included 1 (2015: 1) director
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 12. The emoluments of the
remaining 4 (2015: 4) individuals are set out
below:

11, Jooooogod

(@)

gogodobooooon
0o0ogoasz,o000000
oooogz7,00000000
gboobooodd

ggoooood
gooooobobbboo0oo
oobl1oo0oobooooo1
gbboobodoboood
120 00000004000
oooob40000000
gboodo

2016 2015

oooono oooon

HK$’000 HK$’000

ooo ooo

Basic salaries and allowances oooooon 2,809 3,510
Equity-settled share-based oooooooooo

payments 3,990 -

Retirement benefit scheme oooooooag
contributions 72 75
6,871 3,585

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

ooboooogood

Number of individuals

00
2016 2015
00000 00000
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0 O 1,000,000 O - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0010 0 O
1,500,0000 [ 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0010 0 O
2,000,0000 O 1 =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0010 0 O
2,500,00001 [0 1 =
4 4
goooooao go0o0o0oOOooooooa
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11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(Continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil).

The emoluments paid or payable to the remaining
8 (2015: 8) members of senior management fell
within the following band:

11, Jooooogod

(b)

ggooboooobooo
goooooooooooo
goooooooboooan
ggooooooboooo
goooogbboboooooo
0 M

gobooobooosooon
gogoosgbooooooan
goboobooboodan

Number of individuals
00
2016 2015

googno gooon

Nil to HK$1,000,000 0 O 1,000,0000 O
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00o0oooOooooooooooo

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 12, 0JO0OO0OOOO

DIRECTORS

(@) Directors’ emoluments @ 0OO0OO0O0O
The remuneration of every director is set out ooooooooooo
below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
a person’s services as a director, whether
of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

oo00o000ooooooooooooooooooo

(Note (i)
Estimated
money value
Discretionary of other
Fees bonus benefits Total
000()0
goood
00 0000 D0O0O000 0o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo ooo
Executive Directors ooono
Mr. John Yen Jong Ling ooooan
(Note (ii) oooio 50 250 - 300
Mr. Jim Ka Shun ooooo
(Note (iii) 0oaifio 600 - 1,137 1,737
650 250 1,137 2,037
Independent Non-executive 0000000
Directors
Mr. Gan Wei Ping ooooo 120 - - 120
Mr. Yip Ming oooo 200 - - 200
Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin 0oooo
(Note (iv) 0000 48 100 - 148
Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan (Note (v) 00000000 (w0 48 100 - 148
Mr. Lau Siu Hang (Note (v)) 0o0o0ooooowo 200 - - 200
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward 00000000 (vi)O
(Note (vi) 200 - - 200
Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin ooooo
(Note (vii) 00ovio 80 100 - 180
896 300 - 1,196
Total for 2016 goooooo 1,546 550 1,137 gY88

ooooooo
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00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 12 ODO0U0OO0OOO0ODOOO
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ ODoooood
The remuneration of every director is set out ooboooboobooo
below: (Continued) 000

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
a person’s services as a director, whether
of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
gopoooioooooooooOioouooboooo

(Note (i))
Estimated
Discretionary money value of
Fees bonus  other benefits Total
gooqo
ooono
oo gooo gooooo oo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
oo0 ooo oo0 ooo
Executive Directors gooo
Mr. John Yen Jong Ling oooono
(Note (ii) oooo 600 - - 600
Mr. Sean SK Soo (Note (viii) 00000000 (vino 324 - - 324
924 - - 924
Non-executive Directors goooao
Mr. Chan Ming Wing (Note (x)) 00000000 (X0 50 - - 50
Mr. Lam Fung Francis (Note (x)) OO 00000 (x)O 18 - - 18
68 - - 68
Independent Non-executive goooooo
Directors
Ms. Chan Man Yi (Note (xi) 00000000 xo 40 - - 40
Mr. Gan Wei Ping goooa 120 - - 120
Mr. Liu Meng Fah Liu Meng FahO [
(Note (viii) 000 viyo 61 - - 61
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen 0ooooooomo
(Note (xi)) 40 - - 40
Mr. Yip Ming oooo 200 - - 200
Mr. Chow Ka Man (Note (x)) oooooooomo 18 - - 18
Mr. Kwan Sai Lok Edwin ooooo
(Note (iv) 000 (vo 83 - - 83
Mr. Lam Yuk Kwan (Note (v)) OOOOO000O0O (iv)O 83 - - 83
Mr. Lau Siu Hang (Note (v)) go0ooooowo 110 - - 110
Mr. Tsang Chung Sing Edward 00000
(Note (vi) 0oowo 103 - - 103
Mr. Yun Kwok Wing Edwin ooooao
(Note (vii) 0oawio 103 - - 103
961 - - 961
Total for 2015 oooooon 1,953 - - 1,953
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
00o0oooOooooooooooo

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (i) Estimated money value of other benefits include
leave pay, share options, insurance premium and
club memberships.

(i) Resigned on 31 January 2016

(i) Appointed on 1 January 2016

(iv)  Appointed on 22 April 2015 and retired on 25
May 2016

(v)  Appointed on 12 June 2015

(vij  Appointed on 26 June 2015

(viij Appointed on 26 June 2015 and retired on 25
May 2016

(vii) Resigned on 2 July 2015

(ix) Retired on 22 May 2015

(x)  Appointed on 22 April 2015 and resigned on 16
June 2015

(xi)  Resigned on 30 April 2015

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year (2015: Nil).

ooooooo

12. J0o0oooobogoo

(@)

ooOoooooooooo

gobobogod
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(i)
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(vii)

(ix)

(xi)
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12.

13.

14.

102

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b)  Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$37,656,000 (2015: HK$34,148,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
623,917,095 (2015: 571,949,882) in issue during the
year.

Diluted loss per share

The effect of all potential ordinary shares would be anti-
dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
Company did not have any potential ordinary shares
for the year ended 31 December 2015. Diluted loss per
share was the same as the basic loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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14. 0O0O0O0
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
00o0oooOooooooooooo

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Dooooggg

Furniture
Motor and office
vehicles equipment Total
oodd
0ad ooooo 00
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
oodod oodd ood
Cost 00
At 1 January 2015 goooboooooon 247 657 904
Acquisition of a subsidiary OQOOOOO0OO - 280 280
Additions 0d 857 - 857
Disposals 0ad (247) (657) (904)
At 31 December 2015and O OODOOO
1 January 2016 oo0oooooo
Oo0ooooooo 857 280 1,137
Acquisition of a subsidiary OO OO0OOO0O0O
(note 24) 000240 2,900 - 2,900
Additions 00 - 15 15
At 31 December 2016 oooooo
oo0ooooo 3,757 295 4,052
Accumulated depreciation 0 0O 0 O
At 1 January 2015 Oo0o0ooooooo 135 156 291
Charge for the year oooad 118 306 424
Disposals 0d (171) (444) (615)
At 31 December 2015and O OODOOO
1 January 2016 oooooooo
oo0ooooooo 82 18 100
Charge for the year oooad 788 110 898
At 31 December 2016 gooooo
oo0ooooo 870 128 998
Carrying amount ooo
At 31 December 2016 oooooo
oo0ooooo 2,887 167 3,054
At 31 December 2015 oooooo
oo0ooooo 775 262 1,037

ooooooo

ooOoooooooooo




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooogoogn

For the year ended 31 December 2016

goooooOoOooooooooboog

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. UUooogooag
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 ooooooooooooooao
are as follows: ooooooog

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Particular of issued Percentage of ownership/
Name operation share capital voting power/profit sharing Principal activities
0oooooo
00 ooooo ooooood ooooooooooooood 0ooo
Direct Indirect
ga 0o
2016 2015 2016 2015
00000 00DOD DODODO ooODO
China Financial Leasing Group Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% - - Dormant
(Hong Kong) Limited
0oopooO0oOooDmoooo oo 1nooo 0ooo
*Aimhigh Global Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - 100% - - Dormant
(‘Aimhigh”) Uss1
*Aimhigh Global Investments Limited 000000 1000w oo oood
[0 Aimhigh 0 0oo
Affluent Crest Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% - - Provision of
management
services
ooopoooo 00 1nooo 00oo0o
China Finance Qianhai Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - - - Investment holding
US$1
gooooooooo gooooo 1oowoo gooo
goo
Colour Charm Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - - - Asset holding
("Colour Charm”) US$1
0ooo00o0oooood oooooo 1noowoo 0ooo
goo
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00o0oooOooooooooooo

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. 000000000000

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Particular of issued Percentage of ownership/
Name operation share capital voting power/profit sharing Principal activities
gogoooo
0L ooooo goooood oooOoOoOoOoonood o0ooo
Direct Indirect
0L 0o

2016 2015 2016 2015
ooooo ooooo bOoooo DoOooo

Peaceful Gain Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - - - Investment holding
goooon Uss1
000000 10001000 0ooo
0oo
China Financial Leasing Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% - - - Inactive
Investments Limited
gobooooooooo aa oo gooo
China Finance Qianhai (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - - 100% - Inactive
Limited
0ooooOooo0mooo 00 1nooo 0o0oo
Full Honest Corporation Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - - 100% - Investment holding
0o0oooo 00 10ooo 0ooo
ooooooDooooD People’s Republic of  Registered capital of - - 100% - Provision of
(oooo” China (PRC") Renminhi 100,000 consultancy services
gooooooooood goooooo oooooooo oooooo
mooooa ool 100,0000
* Aimhigh was struck off during the year. * Aimhighd 0O Q00000
0000 is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise ooooo0o0oO0ooooooo0oo

established in the PRC.

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities

of the Group.
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000000O000O0OooooOooo

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 17. Oooodoodd
ASSETS
2016 2015
ooogoao googao
HK$’000 HK$’000
ooo oog
Unlisted equity securities, ooooood
at fair value ooooooo 518 -
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Jo0D0DOo0oo0o0oooooooo
Hong Kong dollars.
18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. O0OU0O0OO0OOOO0OOOOO
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 0o
2016 2015
ogoooao googao
HK$’000 HK$’000
oood oood
Equity securities listed oooooo
in Hong Kong, at cost gooooooo 80,881 49,291
Net fair value loss oooooon (14,637) (15,566)
Fair value as at 31 December O0o0O0oO0oOooooooo 66,244 33,725

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are
classified as held for trading.

The investments included above represent investments
in listed equity securities that offer the Group the
opportunity for return through dividend income and fair
value gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate.
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000000O000o0oooooooo

18.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

The fair values of the listed securities are based on
quoted market prices.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded as net loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The realised loss and unrealised gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2016 are approximately HK$16,182,000 and
HK$929,000 respectively. The realised and unrealised
losses on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 were
approximately HK$3,312,000 and HK$13,904,000
respectively, the aggregate of which was recorded as net
loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

(Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s financial assets at fair value 00000000 ooooooo
through profit or loss as at 31 December 2016 are as oo0ooooooooooooon
follows: ogoooooo
Dividend
income Net assets
Proportion received attributable
Place of Number of ~ of investee’s Fair value during the Dividend to the
Name of investee company incorporation shares held capital owned Cost  Market value (losses)/gains year cover Company
pooooo poo 0ooo goooo
poooooo pooooo oooooo booooo oo 00 0O0000C0O 0ooo oooo oooo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooao
(@ China Internet Investment Finance ~ Bermuda 18,480,000 4.06% 7,356 6,376 (980) - N/A 8,287
Holdings Limited (‘China Internet”) ooo
oooooooooooooob ooo
ooooooood
(b)  KSL Holdings Limited (*KSL") Cayman Islands 4,548,000 1.11% 13,740 13,599 (141) - N/A 1,139
poo
KSL Holdings Limited 0 KSLOD 0000
(c) Newtree Group Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands 10,638,000  Less than 1% 1,754 5,053 3,299 - N/A 1,730
(‘Newtree”) oo ooo
1%
oooooooOo0ObOoObOOD oOooo
(d) Long Success International Bermuda 13,450,000  Less than 1% 8,105 - (8,105) - N/A -
(Holdings) Limited oo ooo
("Long Success”) 1%
ooooooomooo ooao
oooooo
(e) Grand Peace Group Holdings Bermuda 6,918,000 1.5% 15,282 17,433 2,151 - N/A 1,633
Limited (“Grand Peace”) ooo
oo0oOo0oOo00ODOoOoD oOoo
(f) -~ Zheng Li Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 1,225,000  Less than 1% 6,662 6,431 (231) - N/A 188
(‘Zheng LT") 00 ooo
1%
oo0oOoooooooood oooo
(@) King Force Group Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands 80,000,000 1.12% 10,527 3,520 (7,007) - N/A 733
(*King Force”) ooo
oooooooo0O0OoOOOD oOooo
(h) REXLot Holdings Limited Bermuda 114,950,000 1.15% 17,015 13,219 (3,796) - N/A 68.646
(“REXLot’) ooo
oopoooooooo poo
oooooooo
() Yat Sing Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 155,000  Less than 1% 440 613 173 - N/A 24
(“Yat Sing") oo ooo
1%
goO000O0OO0OooooOg 0ooo
80,881 66,244 (14,637) -
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

A brief description of the business and financial
information of the listed investee companies, based on
their published annual and interim reports, is as follows:

(@)

China Internet is principally engaged in investment
in equity and debt securities in order to achieve
medium to long term capital appreciation. The
audited consolidated loss attributable to owners
of China Internet for the year ended 31 December
2016 was approximately HK$74,015,000. As at
31 December 2016, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of China
Internet was approximately HK$204,017,000.

KSL is principally engaged in provision of
engineering consulting, contracting and project
management services in Hong Kong with a
focus on geotechnical engineering works.
The audited consolidated profit attributable
to owners of KSL for the year ended 31 July
2016 was approximately HK$14,722,000
(2015: HK$29,935,000). As at 31 July 2016,
the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of KSL was approximately
HK$107,249,000 (2015: HK$92,527,000). The
unaudited consolidated loss attributable to owners
of KSL for the six months ended 31 January
2017 was approximately HK$4,254,000 (2016:
profit of HK$17,234,000). As at 31 January
2017, the unaudited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of KSL was approximately
HK$102,995,000 (2016: HK$109,761,000).
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(©)

110

Newtree is principally engaged in (i) manufacture
and trading of clinical and household hygienic
disposables and trading of related raw materials;
(i) trading of coal products; (iii) wholesale and
retail of household consumables; (iv) sales and
distribution of jewellries and watches; (v) design
and development of three-dimensional animations,
augmented reality technology application and
e-learning web application; and (vi) provision
of educational technology solutions through
online education programs and provision of
English language proficiency tests. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of
Newtree for the year ended 31 March 2016
was approximately HK$284,394,000 (2015:
HK$258,875,000). As at 31 March 2016, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of Newtree was approximately
HK$315,574,000 (2015: HK$603,956,000).
The unaudited consolidated loss attributable
to owners of Newtree for the six months
ended 30 September 2016 was approximately
HK$153,079,000 (2015: HK$60,184,000). As at
30 September 2016, the unaudited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of Newtree
was approximately HK$386,857,000 (2015:
HK$529,408,000).

China Financial Leasing Group Limited Annual Report 2016

18. UoOoguboooobgd
oodod

(c)

D00oO00O0@HOOoOO0oO
OooO0O0Oo0oooOod
OooO0O0O0O0ooOoO
0O0G)0 000000 (i
0O0O0DO0O0D0O0O0O0O(iv)
000000 O00wOOoO
000000000000
OooO0O0Oo0oooOod
00000000 Ww)O OO
0Do0o0O0O0O00ooO0OQO
OooO0O0Oo0oooOod
000000000000
000000000000
OooO0O0Oo0oooOod
284,394,0000 00 00 O O
00258,875,0000 0 000
00o00000O00000d
000000000000
0 00 0315,574,0000 O
00000 00603,956,000
00MOO0O0000O000
000000000000
000000000000
153,079,0000 00 0O 0O
0060,184,0000 0 IO O
000000000000
000000000000
000 0 386,857,0000 O
00000 00529,408,000
00



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
000000O000o0oooooooo

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(d)

Long Success is principally engaged in the trading
of wine and alcohol. Long Success’s shares were
suspended for trading on the Stock Exchange
since 3 December 2013 and delisted on 19
October 2016. The audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of Long Success for the
year ended 31 March 2015 was approximately
HK$22,899,000. As at 31 March 2015, the
audited consolidated shareholders’ deficit of Long
Success was approximately HK$29,518,000.
The unaudited consolidated loss attributable
to owners of Long Success for the six months
ended 30 September 2015 was approximately
HK$10,394,000. As at 30 September 2015,
the unaudited consolidated shareholders’
deficit of Long Success was approximately
HK$39,912,000.

Grand Peace is principally engaged in provision
of funeral services, sale of funeral related
products and loan financing business. The
audited consolidated loss attributable to owners
of Grand Peace for the year ended 31 December
2015 was approximately HK$50,508,000. As at
31 December 2015, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of Grand
Peace was approximately HK$128,396,000. The
unaudited consolidated loss attributed to owners
of Grand Peace for the six months ended 30 June
2016 was approximately HK$17,277,000. As at 30
June 2016, the unaudited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of Grand Peace was
approximately HK$108,890,000.
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18 O0d00OO0OO0O0OO0O0OO0OO0O0O

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS gouodog

(Continued)

) Zheng Li is principally engaged in the business (f) 0000o0o@Mnooooo
of (i) maintenance and repair of passenger cars; O0oD0ooooo@oooao
and (i) modification, tuning and grooming of the oooooooogoooodg
performance or appearance of passenger cars 00000000000
and trading of spare parts and accessories. Zheng O0DO0oooDooooooao
Li’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on Oooooooooooo
8 November 2016. The audited consolidated loss 00000000 oooo
attributable to owners of Zheng Li for the year Oooooooooooo
ended 31 December 2016 was approximately Oooooooooooo
HK$3,209,000. As at 31 December 2016, the 3,209,0000 OOOODOOO
audited consolidated net asset value attributable Ooooooooooooo
to owners of Zheng Li was approximately Oooooooooooo
HK$76,803,000. 0 76,803,0000 OO

(9) King Force is principally engaged in provision (9) ooooooooooog
of security of guarding services. The audited O0o0oooooooooo
consolidated loss attributable to owners of King Oooooooooooo
Force for the year ended 31 March 2016 was Oooooooogoooog
approximately HK$55,000. As at 31 March 55,0000 000 00000
2016, the audited consolidated net asset Oooooooooooo
value attributable to owners of King Force was Oooooooooooo
approximately HK$59,778,000. The unaudited 59,778,0000 00O O OO
consolidated profit attributable to owners of King Oooooooooooo
Force for the six months ended 30 September Oooooooooooo
2016 was approximately HK$5,612,000. As at 30 000005,612,0000 00O
September 2016, the unaudited consolidated net O0o0oDoooooooo
asset value attributable to owners of King Force Oooooooooooo
was approximately HK$65,341,000. 00000 0e65,341,0000

oo
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(h)

REXLot is principally engaged in lottery system
and games development business and distribution
and marketing of lottery products in PRC. The
audited consolidated profit attributable to owners
of REXLot for the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately HK$150,879,000. As at 31
December 2015, the audited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of REXLot was
approximately HK$5,971,157,000. The unaudited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of
REXLot for the six months ended 30 June 2016
was approximately HK$82,159,000. As at 30
June 2016, the unaudited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of REXLot was
approximately HK$5,988,798,000.

Yat Sing is principally engaged in provision of
building maintenance and renovation services.
The audited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of Yat Sing for the year ended 30 June
2016 was approximately HK$11,581,000. As
at 30 June 2016, the audited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of Yat Sing was
approximately HK$170,229,000. The unaudited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Yat
Sing for the six months ended 31 December
2016 was approximately HK$141,000. As at 31
December 2016, the unaudited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of Yat Sing was
approximately HK$170,088,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

19. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 19. 0O0ooooo
2016 2015
ooooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
ogdd ood
Deposits oo 345 155
Prepayments gooo = 43
345 198
20. SHARE CAPITAL 20, OO
2016 2015
ogoood ogooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
ogdd ood
Authorised: ood
15,000,000,000 ordinary shares of  15,000,000,0000 O O O O
HK$0.02 each 002000000 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: ooooooo
741,949,882 (2015: 571,949,882) 741,949,8821 0 0 0 0O OO
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each 571,949,882010 0 0 O O
oo200D0O0Od 14,839 11,439
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00o0oooOooooooooooo

20. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 200 JOOOO
A summary of the movements in the issued share capital O000oO00DoOO0OO0ooOoOooOoO
of the Company during the year is as follows: oo
Number
of ordinary
shares of
HK$0.02
each Par value
oooo
0.020 00
gogooo 0
Note HK$’000
0o oo
At 1 January 2015, goooooooood
31 December 2015 and oooooooo
1 January 2016 oooon
gooooooon 571,949,882 11,439
Issue of shares on placements O OO O0OOO0O (a) 170,000,000 3,400
At 31 December 2016 goooon
goooooao 741,949,882 14,839
Note: ooo
(@) On 12 May 2016, the Company entered into a placing (@) gooooooooooooao
agreement with Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingston”) as ooooooooooobboOoo
placing agent where Kingston agreed to place on a best gobmooooooooooon
effort basis a maximum of 50,000,000 new shares of the gooooobooooobooo
Company (“Placing Share I”) of HK$0.02 each at HK$0.58 per oooooorossonooonon
Placing Share | to at least six places who were professional 50,000,0000 O O O 00.020 00
investors according to the definition of The Securities and gooDo0oOoooocoooioog o
Future Ordinance. The intended and actual use of proceeds gooooooooooooooo
from the share placement was for general working capital and gooooooooomooao
investments. The placing transaction was completed on 24 gooooooooobooboooo
May 2016 and a total of 50,000,000 shares were issued. The oooocoooobooboooboooo
gross and net proceeds were approximately HK$29,000,000 o00o00O0O0O00O0O00000
and HK$28,120,000 respectively. The net placing price was 0 0 O050,000,0000 000000
approximately HK$0.56. OoOooOO0O0D00o029,000,0000
0 O028,120,0000 OOO DO DOOO
0.560 OO
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20. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

116

(@

(Continued)

On 12 October 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Supreme China Securities Limited (“Supreme”)
as placing agent where Supreme agreed to place on a best
effort basis a maximum of 120,000,000 new shares of the
Company (“Placing Share I1”) of HK$0.02 each at HK$0.29 per
Placing Share Il to at least six places who were professional
investors according to the definition of The Securities and
Future Ordinance. The intended and actual use of proceeds
from the share placement was for general working capital
and investments. The placing transaction was completed on
27 October 2016 and a total of 120,000,000 shares were
issued. The gross and net proceeds were approximately
HK$34,800,000 and HK$33,875,000 respectively. The net
placing price was approximately HK$0.28.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(i)

To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns and benefits for stakeholders;

To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the
future capital requirements of the Group and capital
efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and
projected strategic investment opportunities. The Group
currently does not adopt any formal dividend policy.
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20. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 200 JOOOO
The Group also balances its overall capital structure 0O00ooo0oooDooooao
periodically. The Group manages the capital structure ooooooooooDooooo
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in oooooooooooooo
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the 0O000oOooooooooooo
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the ooooooooooDooooo
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount oooooooocooooooo
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to Joooooooo0ooooooao
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group will also ooooooooooooooo
consider the raise of long-term borrowings as second ooooooooooooooo
resource of capital when investment opportunities arise 000000000000
and the return of such investments will justify the cost of
debts from the borrowings.
The Group regards total equity as capital, for capital oo0ooooooooooooon
management purpose. The amount of capital as oooopoooocooooooo
at 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately 0000000000 70,525,000
HK$70,525,000 (2015: HK$39,986,000), in which 0000000 0039,986,0000
the Group considers as optimal having considered omooooooooooooo
the projected capital expenditures and the projected 00000000 ooooooo
strategic investment opportunities. ooooo
The Group also endeavours to ensure the steady and 00000000 ooooooo
reliable cash flow from the normal business operation. ooooooooooooooo
For both years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the oooooooooooooo
Group did not raise any debts. 0O000oo0oooooooooao

gooooboog

oooooobbooooo

The only externally imposed capital requirement is O
goooooobbbooon
]
g

that for the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock
Exchange it has to have a public float of at least

O

g

goo25%0 000000000
25% of the shares. The Group received a report from O

g

U

O

gbobooooooobooon
ooooooooooooon
goboobobooooooooan
00025%000

share registrars on substantial share interests showing
the non-public float and it demonstrated continuing
compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year.
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21. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the

118

(@)

21, OUOoOooooooood

0d

(@ 0O0O0O0OO0OOO

Company
2016 2015
ooooo oooono
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
0o oog goo
Non-current assets ooooao
Property, plant and ooooooono
equipment 574 775
Investments in subsidiaries OO0 O0O0OO0OO0O0O 3,325 426
Available-for-sale financial OO OOO0O0OO0O
assets 518 -
4,417 1,201
Current assets o000
Financial assets at fairvalue O OO0 OO0 O0O0O0OO
through profit or loss goooo 66,244 33,725
Deposits and prepayments OO0 00000 200 10
Due from subsidiaries Ooo0oooooaoao 105 58
Bank and cash balances ooooooag 671 6,441
67,220 40,234
Current liabilities Oo0oon
Accruals ooon 360 1,377
Net current assets Ooooooo 66,860 38,857
NET ASSETS ooon 71,277 40,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
00o0oooOooooooooooo

21. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 21. ODO0O0OO0O0OO0O0OO0OO

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 0od oo
COMPANY (Continued)
(@) Statement of financial position of the (@ ODoOOoOoOOoooDoooOOo

Company (Continued)

2016 2015
ocoooo ocoooo
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
g gogg gogad
Capital and reserves ooooo
Equity attributable to oooooooooa
owners of the Company
Share capital 00 20 14,839 11,439
Reserves 00O 21(b) 56,438 28,619
TOTAL EQUITY ooo 71,277 40,058
Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March oo0ooopoooooooooo
2017 and is signed on its behalf by: oo0oo00o0o0ooooooon
Jim Ka Shun Yip Ming
ooo oo
Executive Director Independent Non-executive Director
oooo oooooon
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

21. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 21. O0OOOO0OOOO0DOOO
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE Ooo00O0
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company (bpy ODOoOOOoOoOo

Capital Share  Investment
Share  reduction option  revaluation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
0000 000000 0OODO OooOoO 0ooo 0o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
000 000 000 000 000 000
At 1 January 2015 oooooooood 88,446 19,444 - - (45,179) 62,711
Total comprehensive income 00000000
for the year - - - - (34,092) (34,092)
At 31 December 2015and  OOO0O000
1 January 2016 gooooooo
0ooooooona 88,446 19,444 - - (19,27) 28,619
Total comprehensive income 00000000
for the year - - - (633) (36,976) (37,609)
Issue of shares on placements 0000000
(note 20(a)) 00020()0 60,400 - - - - 60,400
Share issue expenses gooooo (1,805) - - - - (1,805)
Share-hased payments oooooo
(note 23) 000230 - - 6,833 - - 6,833
At 31 December 2016 gooooo
0oopoooo 147,041 19,444 6,833 (633) (116,247) 56,438
22. RESERVES 22. 00O
(@  Group @ 000

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and oooooooooooo
movements therein are presented in the oooooooooooo
consolidated statement of profit or loss and oooooooooood
other comprehensive income and consolidated oo

statement of changes in equity.
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000000O000o0oooooooo

22. RESERVES (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(b)

()

(i)

(i)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. The share premium may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

Capital reduction reserve

Capital reduction reserve represents the
credit arising from the reduction of par
value of issued share capital after cancelling
the accumulated losses of the Company
in 2012. The reserve may be utilised by
the directors as a distributable reserve in
accordance with the articles of association
of the Company and all applicable laws.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
directors, employees and consultants of the
Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled
share-based payments in note 4(n) to the
consolidated financial statements.

ooooooo

22. O0OO0O0O

(y 0OOOODOOO

() oOoo00o
00o0O0o0O0oooo
0oooo0DOoo0ooo
0oooooo0ooo
0000000 o0o0on
0000000000
0oooooo0ooo
0oo0o0o0DO0oo0oo0o
0000000 ooo
0o0oo0o0ooooo

() O0O0O0000
Doooooo0
DOoooooodo
DooooooQ0
Doooooo0
Ooooo00o0oo
DooooooQ0
Doooooo0
Ooooooo

Oo0ooogoogao

(i) OO0O000
0oooooo0ooo
0O0o000o0oooo
0oooo0DOoo0ooo
0oooooo0ooo
0000000 ooo
004nO00D0000
0oooooo0ooo
000000000
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22.

23.

122

RESERVES (Continued)
(b)  Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv)  Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy in note 4(f)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees,
executives, officers, directors, business consultants,
suppliers, customers, legal and financial advisers of the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 12 January 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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000000O000o0oooooooo

23.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on
a date which is not later than five years from the date of
the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (i) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer, when
applicable.

ooooooo

23. Juodooogod
0000000000 OoO
00000000000 0000
oooOoOoOoO0oOOOOOOOO
000000000000 o0o
000O00000000O0000
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00000o0o0ooU0oOooOoooooo

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 23. 000000000

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) O0o0ooooooooo
Share options do not confer rights on the holder to oo0ooooooooooooon
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. ocooooooooooo
Details of the share options are as follows: ooooooog
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
oooo ooo 000 ooo
HK$
g
2016 12 July 2016 N/A 12 July 2016 - 0.40
11 July 2019
goooo ooooo oo00O O0O00Ooo 0.40
goooo gooooo
ocoooo
ooooo
If the share options remain unexercised after a period 0oo0oooooogo3oooon
of 3 years from the date of grant, the options expire. oooo0ooOoooooooooo
Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group. oooooooood
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oooooon

For the year ended 31 December 2016
00o0oooOooooooooooo

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
Details of the share options outstanding during the year

are as follows:

23. Juodooogod
0000000000 OoO
ooooOooO0OO0O0O0O0o0O0o

Number of Number of Number of
share options  share options  share options
Name and held as at granted held as at
category of 1 January during the 31 December Exercise
grantees Date of grant 2016 year 2016 price  Exercise period
googooo gooooo
gooono gooo good oooooodd
ooao oooo 0o00oooo 00000 0O0O0O0OD0O0 000 000
HK$
00
Director
00
Mr. Jim Ka Shun 12 July 2016 - 5,700,000 5,700,000 0.40 12 July 2016 -
11 July 2019
ooooo ooooao ooooao
ooooo oooooo
ooooo
goagoo
Employees 12 July 2016 - 20,000,000 20,000,000 0.40 12 July 2016 -
11 July 2019
00 ooooooo ooood
ooo oooooo
goagoog
googoo
Consultants 12 July 2016 - 8,600,000 8,600,000 0.40 12 July 2016 -
11 July 2019
00 ooood ooood
goooo gooooo
goooo
0oooo
- 34,300,000 34,300,000
ooooooo ooooooooooon 125
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23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 23. 000000000
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) O0o0ooooooooo
Details of the movement of share options during the year oooooooooooo
are as follows:

2016 2015
ooooo gooooo
Weighted Weighted
Number average average
of share exercise Number of exercise
options price share options price
oooo oooo
ooooo ooo 00000 goo
HK$ HK$
00 00
Outstanding at the beginning oogooo
of the year - - -
Granted during the year oooo 34,300,000 0.40 -
Outstanding at the end gooooo
of the year 34,300,000 0.40 -
Exercisable at the end oooooo
of the year 34,300,000 0.40 -
The share options outstanding at the end of the year oooooooooooooao
have a remaining contractual life of 2.53 years and the 002530 000000.400 00
exercise price of HK$0.40. The share options were oooooOoooooooooo
granted on 12 July 2016 and the estimated fair value ooooooooooooooon
of the share options on this date was approximately 0 6,833,0000 OO

HK$6,833,000.
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23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 23. 000000000

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) O0o0ooooooooo
The fair value was calculated using the binomial option oooooOoooooooooo
pricing model. The inputs into the model were as follows: ooooogooooooog

Director and
employees Consultants

ogoood RN
Share price 00 HK$0.36 HK$0.36
0.360 O 0.360 O
Exercise price 000 HK$0.40 HK$0.40
0.400 O 0.400 O
Risk free rate ooooo 0.578% 0.578%
Contractual life gooo 2.997 years 2.997 years
2.9970 2.9970
Expected volatility oooo 110.498% 110.498%
Expected dividend yield gooooogd 0% 0%
Early exercise multiple goooog 3.660 2.582
Exit rate ooo 11.111% 0%
Expected volatility was determined by calculating the ooooooooosgooooo
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the ooooooooooooooo
previous 3 years. The calculation had been adjusted, ooooooooooboooooo
based on the Group’s best estimate, for the effects of oo0oooooooooo
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.
Share options granted to consultants were incentives for oo0ooooooooooooon
helping the Group expand its business network, acquire ooooooooooooooo
and explore new business projects and opportunities. ooooooooooooooo
The fair value of such benefit could not be estimated O0o0oopooooooooooo
reliably and as a result, the fair value is measured by ooooopoooooooooo
reference to the fair value of share options granted. ooo
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000000O000O0OooooOooo

24. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 24, DOOoooogg

On 17 March 2016, the Group acquired 100% of
the issued share capital of Colour Charm at a cash
consideration of HK$2,900,000. Colour Charm did not
generate any revenue since its date of incorporation on
2 January 2015. The acquisition of Colour Charm did
not constitute a business combination. The acquisition
is for the purpose of acquiring the property, plant and
equipment.

The purchase consideration was allocated to the
identifiable assets of Colour Charm acquired as at its
date of acquisition as follows:

O

O
u
U
O
u
U

goooooobobbbooon
Oo0ooogz900,00000000
gooooobobooooooan
gboooboooobooobg
obOoooooboooooonn
gooooboboooooooan
goboooobooob

gboooboooobooobg
oooobooooooo

Net assets acquired: ooooooog HK$’000
ood

Property, plant and equipment gooboooo 2,900

Net assets ggod 2,900

Total consideration, satisfied by: oooboooooobooo

Cash 0od 2,900

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: dooodoooooooooo

Cash consideration paid gooooo (2,900)

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 25. 0JOOod
As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any Ooooooooooooooo

significant contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
00o0oooOooooooooooo

26. LEASE COMMITMENTS 26, OO
At 31 December 2016 the total future minimum lease ooooooooooooooo
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are oo0ooooooooooooon
payable as follows: ooooooooogo
2016 2015
ooooo ooooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
ogdd ood
Within one year ooo 516 516
In the second to fifth years oooooo
inclusive oooooogon 215 731
731 1,247
Operating lease payments represented rentals payable oo0ooooooooooooon
by the Group for its office. Lease is negotiated for a term ooooooooooo3ooon
of 3 years and rental is fixed over the lease term and oo0ooooooooooooon
does not include contingent rentals. og
27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27. Jooon
Compensation of key management personnel goooooooo
The key management personnel of the Company ooooooooooooooo
comprises all employees and directors, details of their ooooooooooooooo
remuneration are disclosed in notes 11 and 12(a) to the Oo0oooo00D11012@0 00

consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
oooon

A summary of the published results and of the assets and O00O0OOOO0OO0O0OO0OO0OOO0O0OOOOO
liabilities of the Group for last five financial years, as extracted 00000000000 0O00O0O00O0O
from the audited financial statements, is set out below. 000000000000 O0O0O0O0O0C
The summary does not form part of the audited financial O OO0 OO

statements.
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
gooobo OOoooo OO0oboo O0O00oo O0Ooodoo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooo ooo ooo
RESULTS oo
Revenue oo 1 1 4 23 223
Loss before tax goooo (37,656) (34,148) (34,874) (9,863) (22,862
Income tax expense oogog - - - - -
Loss for the year attributable 0 00000
to owners of the Company 000000 (37,656) (34,148) (34,874) (9,863) (22,862)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 0O0O00OO
Non-current assets ooooo 3,572 1,037 613 214 4,311
Current assets gooo 67,340 40,364 73,845 43,209 49,041
Current liabilities oooo (387) (1,415) (324) (370) (436)
Net assets attributableto 000000
owners of the Company oooooo 70,525 39,986 74,134 43,053 52,916
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YIP Ming

LAU Siu Hang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
LAU Siu Hang (Chairperson)
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YIP Ming
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YIP Ming (Chairperson)
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 2202, 22nd Floor

118 Connaught Road West

Hong Kong

INVESTMENT MANAGER
Avia Asset Management Limited
Unit A, Level 9, Fortis Tower

77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

AUDITOR
RSM Hong Kong

CUSTODIAN
DBS Vickers (Hong Kong) Limited

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Hong Kong Branch

STOCK CODE
2312

WEBSITE
http://www.cflg.com.hk
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